
 

Barrington Zoning Board of Adjustment/bi 
September 20, 2023/ pg. 1 of 9 

 
TOWN OF BARRINGTON, NH                                                                Zoning Board of Adjustment Members 

LAND USE DEPARTMENT                            Tracy Hardekopf, Chair 

Vanessa Price, Town Planner                                                                                  Paul Thibodeau, Vice Chair 

                                                                                                  Cheryl Huckins 

                                                                                                         Alexandra Simocko 

 

Meeting Minutes 

Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA) 

(Approved October 18, 2023) 

September 20, 2023, at 7:00 P.M. 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Tracy Hardekopf at 7:01 p.m. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. ROLL CALL 

Members Present: Tracy Hardekopf, Paul Thibodeau, Cheryl Huckins, Alexandra Simocko 

Staff Present: Town Planner: Vanessa Price, Zoning Administrator: John Huckins 

4. ACTION ITEMS:  

 

A. 250-39-NR-23-SpecExcept (Loren Valliere & Zachary Tucker) Request by applicant for a 

Special Exception from Article 4, Section 4.1.2 Lot Frontage to allow the access to the proposed 

Lot 39-1 from 190 Beauty Hill Road will be within the proposed 30’ wide common driveway 

easement in the Neighborhood Residential Zoning District. BY: Joel Runnals, Norway Plains 

Associates, Inc; PO Box 249; Rochester, NH 03866-0249. 

 

T. Hardekopf read the application description. 

 

Joel Runnals from Norway Plains Associates, Inc represented Loren Valliere & Zachary Tucker.  

Joel explained that they are trying to subdivide their property of 12-acres and are proposing to create a 

new residential lot of 2-acres, and the remaining land would be 10-acre. They are proposing a backlot 

subdivision. The proposed new lot is a long skinny lot and doesn’t have a lot of frontages versus the 

amount of acreage. Joel explained that they are using the backlot regulations to create Lot 39-1. When 

they started the project, one of the requirements was to do wetland mapping. When they had the wetland 

mapped there was a pocket of wetlands in the front where the neck of the backlot was going to be.  

 

T. Hardekopf asked Joel to trace first the two lots and then where the driveway was going so the neck  

can’t go over the wetlands. T. Hardekopf asked Joel to show where the driveway to the back lot would 

go all the way through to where the house would go.  

 

Joel showed the Board where the driveway was going to for the backlot. 

 

T. Hardekopf asked what the thickness of the neck was. 

 

https://www.barrington.nh.gov/maps/pages/map-250-4


 

Barrington Zoning Board of Adjustment/bi 
September 20, 2023/ pg. 2 of 9 

Joel explained that it was over 50 feet. Joel explained that instead of trying to get a wetland crossing for 

the access to the backlot, they are requesting a Special Exception to allow to have access other than on the  

frontage of the of the proposed lot. Joel explained to use a proposed driveway easement that would share  

the existing driveway so that the existing house already has a driveway. Joel explained that the access was  

going to be at the beginning of that driveway on Beauty Hill Road. Joel explained that he proposed to cut 

across this was the edge of the easement and staying out of the wetland buffer as well. Joel explained that 

this way it would not impact the wetlands that was why they were asking for a Special Exception to allow 

them access not at the frontage.  

  

T. Hardekopf asked Joel to cover the five criteria for a Special Exception. 

 

T. Hardekopf read the application description. She stated to the applicant, Joel Runnals, that the zoning 

board of adjustment has four seated members of this ZBA. There are three that would be voted for or 

against the variance. Are you willing to accept four Members, or would you like to continue to a later 

date? 

 

Joel expressed that he would like to proceed with the application. 

 

Joel read the following five criteria below: 

 



 

Barrington Zoning Board of Adjustment/bi 
September 20, 2023/ pg. 3 of 9 

 
T. Hardekopf asked staff why it’s a Special Exception and not a variance? 

 

John Huckins explained that it was because of the use it’s not a Variance.  

 

Joel explained that in the Town of Barrington regulations about frontage and access, it says right in there  

that it could have access at a different point with a Special Exception.  

 

T. Hardekopf opened public comment. 

 

T. Hardekopf closed public comment. 

 

T. Hardekopf asked where the fence was that was currently in place along the driveway area for parking  

trailers.  

 

Joel explained that there was a privacy fence, and they would need to go back to the Planning Board to  

get advice for Site Review requirement. 

 

T. Hardekopf explained that there was currently a fence there and it’s required to be there. 

 



 

Barrington Zoning Board of Adjustment/bi 
September 20, 2023/ pg. 4 of 9 

Joel explained that he talked to John Huckins Code Enforcement Officer and what needs to be done. 

Joel explained that they need to connect concentrated onto the lot and the 2-acre lot that would all need to  

Be visually buffered as well. Joel explained that this would be the next step after the Zoning Board would  

be to go to the Planning Board for Site Review. Joel explained that if the Zoning Board approves this the  

driveway would also be the driveway for the business.  

  

T. Hardekopf asked if the Zoning Board was to approve this it’s her understanding that the shared  

driveway would also be the driveway to a business.  

 

Joel said yes. 

 

T. Hardekopf asked if this was where semi-trucks back in to drop off items. 

 

C. Huckins explained that this was all existing at the site.  

 

Joel explained that they previously went for Site Review in 2016. 

 

C. Huckins expressed that she didn’t see anything about a fence.  

 

John Huckins explained that the original Site Review required a fence because of the home business that  

was approved a few years ago.  

 

Joel explained that they had to put some trees to buffer site. 

 

John Huckins explained that it could be a visual buffer was what it said so it didn’t necessarily have to be 

a fence. 

 

Joel explained that they had an option but there going to move all the part of the site back to the Planning  

Board. Joel showed on the plan that the fence was still there. 

 

P. Thibodeau asked if the fence was still there. 

 

Joel stated that he believed so.  

 

John Huckins explained that at the Planning Board they are going to focus on the 2-lot subdivision not the  

full site.  

 

T. Hardekopf explained that one side was another skinny 8-acre lot and there are three 10, 11 almost 12 

acre skinny long lots along there. 

 

C. Huckins explained that she liked the idea of the reduced curb cuts.  

 

Joel explained Beauty Hill Road needs and they don’t have to apply for wetland permit to distribute those  

wetlands.  

 

John Huckins explained that if this got denied and they went to NHDES they would almost have to give  

them that crossing. 

 

A motion was made by C. Huckins and seconded by P. Thibodeau to grant the Special Exception based on 

the hardship with the wetlands, they are allowed a backlot, and using the existing driveway. The motion  

passed unanimously. 



 

Barrington Zoning Board of Adjustment/bi 
September 20, 2023/ pg. 5 of 9 

Roll Call: 

A. Simocko-Yay 

C. Huckins-Yay 

P. Thibodeau-Yay 

T. Hardekopf-Yay 

 

B. 250-39-NR-23-Variance (Loren Valliere & Zachary Tucker) Request by applicant for a 

variance from Article 4, Section 4.1.1. Table 2 to allow a front setback of 19’ where 40’ required 

at 190 Beauty Hill Road (Map 250, Lot 39) in the Neighborhood Residential Zoning District. BY: 

Joel Runnals, Norway Plains Associates, Inc; PO Box 249; Rochester, NH 03866-0249. 

 

T. Hardekopf read the application description. 

 

Joel Runnals from Norway Plains Associates, Inc represented Loren Valliere & Zachary Tucker who are  

not present. Joel explained that they are before the Board for a variance from the Article 4 Dimensional  

Requirements, Section 4.1.1 Minimum Standards Table 2 to allow a front setback of 19’ where 40’ was  

required to the opposed driveway easement. Joel explained that he and the Code Enforcement Officer  

spoke about this. Joel explained that the Code Enforcement Officer he believed that the proposed  

driveway easement requires a 40’ front setback. Joel explained that this easement where they want to put  

it because there trying to get it off using the wetland buffer. Joel explained that the existing house it ends 

up being 19’ from the edge of the easement to the existing house. 

 

T. Hardekopf asked Joel to illustrate that on the plan? 

 

Joel showed on the plan. 

 

T. Hardekopf asked if there was no way for building one and asked if it was 19’ for a new building that  

was placed on the property recently. 

 

Joel stated that was correct. Joel explained that there was a house there and they replaced it in the same  

footprint.  

 

T. Hardekopf asked if this was asking for 19’ where 40’ for the frontage was required. 

 

Joel explained that was not the frontage, that the frontage was Beauty Hill Road not along the easement. 

 

C. Huckins got it, P. Thibodeau didn’t get it and T. Hardekopf didn’t get it.  

 

John Huckins explained that it you read the regulations it says for frontage it says: 

“It says the length of a lot line abutting a Class 5 highway or other road which are building mean  

lock fully be built.” 

John explained that would make it Beauty Hill Road, which was Joel’s point is. John explained that this  

all came about because of having to deal with class 5 and private roads when he worked with the Town  

Attorney about frontage. John explained that it was considered a road and what’s not considered a road. 

John explained to the Board it you go to the definition. John read the definition as follows: 

Lot Line, Front: the property line dividing a lot from a street right-of way from which vehicular  

access is provided to the lot. 

John explained that Route 125 (Calef Highway) was a public right of way, so the Town doesn’t own it  

and the State doesn’t own it. John explained that it’s an easement it’s a right of way it’s a right to pass,  

it’s a public one because it’s a public way.  

John explained that this was a private way so that makes that a right of way a private right away which  

https://www.barrington.nh.gov/maps/pages/map-250-4


 

Barrington Zoning Board of Adjustment/bi 
September 20, 2023/ pg. 6 of 9 

means it’s a private road if you go by the whole definition section that’s all in the RSA.  

 

P. Thibodeau asked John if he was talking about Beauty Hill Road. 

 

John explained to the Board that he was talking about the driveway in was on the new lot. John explained 

that they are calling it an easement but it’s still the right of way to get to the other lot. Because it’s a right  

of way to get to the lot it’s a private road by the way the Town definition works. John explained that was  

why it is a frontage that would need to be 40’ away. John explained that it was called the edge of the  

travel way and then when you go to setbacks, he explained that he was just trying to conform to what the 

Town regulations are. John explained then if you go to setbacks, he read the following: 

“Where a yard abuts a street, the setback is the area lying between the abutting street rights-of-way 

line and the furthest projection of any building or structure.”    

John explained that is what makes it a private road, so it’s no different than Baxter they must come in  

when they do something there.  

 

P. Thibodeau suggested if they tried to get a waiver for the 50’ setback going to the Planning Board and  

move that driveway over not to give it the whole 40’.   

 

John explained that he was saying to go in the buffer to get the 40’. 

 

T. Hardekopf explained that they must go with what the request was noticed to the abutters. 

 

Joel expressed that they would stay with the 19’.  

 

P. Thibodeau explained that it would be better if they went in the buffer, and he could get his 40’.  

 

Joel explained with the 19’ versus the 40’ than ask for a waiver for the 40’ setback.  

 

Joel read the following justification: 

 



 

Barrington Zoning Board of Adjustment/bi 
September 20, 2023/ pg. 7 of 9 

 
 

 

V. Price stated #3 was missing.  



 

Barrington Zoning Board of Adjustment/bi 
September 20, 2023/ pg. 8 of 9 

 

T. Hardekopf questioned that there was currently a business that the Planning Board gave approval for  

them to operate along with the house on the property. T. Hardekopf asked Joel to explain the hardship of  

not being able to subdivide. 

 

Joel explained that they should be able to subdivide the 12 acres of the land seems reasonable that they  

should be able to subdivide the land into at least two lots.  

 

T. Hardekopf opened public comment. 

 

T. Hardekopf closed public comment. 

 

A. Simocko asked about the third of the five criteria asked what happened. 

 

Joel explained as part of the subdivision getting a variance to the frontage setback was only going to 

affect the existing house. It’s not going to be setback to any abutting lots or anything so it’s just effects  

the owners of the property.  

 

T. Hardekopf asked Town Planner V. Price if they were allowed to proceed without that in the packet. 

 

V. Price answered that the case can be heard if the board is in agreement the applicant can justify #3 of the 

criteria.  

 

The Board supported going ahead with the application.  

 

T. Hardekopf asked Joel to state how #3 meets the criteria.  

 

Joel explained that the only parcels affected by the variance of the 19’ from the 40’ are the owners of the  

property. These only effects the owners that are proposing the subdivision with no loss to the abutting  

properties.  

 

A motion was made by A. Simocko and seconded by C. Huckins reason for granting the variance the  

applicant has demonstrated that special condition hardship to the applicant was defined under applicable  

law because they’re entitled to reasonable use of the property and without experience. Granting the  

variance the order contrary to the public interest because their property was the only one effected by this  

variance. Granting the variance will not result in the conditions of property values and the only buildings  

and brighter way affected. Granting the variance would do justice because it allows them to have. 

Nothing about the approval shall supersede the conditions of the approval that were or may be imposed  

by the Planning Board. The motion passed unanimously. 

Roll Call: 

A. Simocko-Yay 

C. Huckins-Yay 

P. Thibodeau-Yay 

T. Hardekopf-Yay 

 

C. 226-50-4-NR-23-Var (Owners: Daryl & Michelle Kelly) Request by applicant for a Variance 

from Article 3, Section 3.1.6 Site Plan Review Regulations and Article 19 Commercial Keeping 

of Farm Animals at 17 Coachman Drive (Map 226, Lot 50-4) in the Neighborhood Residential 

Zoning District.  

 

T. Hardekopf read the application description. 

https://www.barrington.nh.gov/land-use-department/pages/lot-50-4


 

Barrington Zoning Board of Adjustment/bi 
September 20, 2023/ pg. 9 of 9 

 

T. Hardekopf read the application description. She stated to the applicant, Michelle Kelly, that the zoning 

board of adjustment has four seated members of this ZBA. There are three that would be voted for or 

against the variance. Are you willing to accept four Members, or would you like to continue to a later 

date? 

 

Michelle Kelly from 17 Coachman Drive asked to be continued until October 18, 2023. 

 

A motion was made by A. Simocko and seconded by C. Huckins per the applicants request to continue the  

application to October 18, 2023, to have a full Zoning Board of 5 members. The motion passed  

unanimously. 

Roll Call: 

A. Simocko-Yay 

C. Huckins-Yay 

P. Thibodeau-Yay 

T. Hardekopf-Yay 

 

5. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Review and approve minutes of the July 19, 2023, meeting. 

 

A motion was made by A. Simocko and seconded by T. Hardekopf to approve the minutes of the  

July 19, 2023, meeting minutes as written. The motion passed unanimously. 

Roll Call: 

A. Simocko-Yay 

C. Huckins-Yay 

P. Thibodeau-Yay 

T. Hardekopf-Yay 

 

6. STAFF UPDATES -TOWN PLANNER  

A. TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES   

NHMA training Land Use Law Conference ZBA Saturday, October 21, 2023 - 9:00am to 3:00pm. Please 

refer to the link here for additional information and registration details: 

https://www.nhmunicipal.org/event/registration-open-land-use-law-conference-zba 

V. Price informed the Board that P. Thibodeau and A. Simocko would be attending. They can summit the  

registration to her along with mileage for reimbursement. 

B. Housing Master Plan Chapter 

Barrington is updating the Housing Chapter of the Master Plan. Your feedback is important and will be 

integrated into the update. 

1. Housing Survey: https://tinyurl.com/barmp23   

2. Barrington Housing Forum Community Meeting  

Where: Early Childhood Learning Center located at 77 Ramsdell Lane 

When: September 30, 2023 

Time: 8:30 am – 12:00 pm 

 

https://www.nhmunicipal.org/event/registration-open-land-use-law-conference-zba
https://tinyurl.com/barmp23


 

Barrington Zoning Board of Adjustment/bi 
September 20, 2023/ pg. 10 of 9 

V. Price updated and reminded the Board of the Housing Master Plan Chapter on September 30, 2023. 

 

7. OTHER BUSINESS THAT MAY PROPERLY COME BEFORE THE BOARD   

8. ADJOURN 

A motion was made by T. Hardekopf and seconded by C. Huckins to adjourn the September 20,  

2023, meeting at 7:40 p.m. The motion passed unanimously. 

Roll Call: 

A. Simocko-Yay 

C. Huckins-Yay 

P. Thibodeau-Yay 

T. Hardekopf-Yay 

 

A. Adjourn the Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA) Meeting. Next ZBA meeting date is October 18, 

2023, at 7:00 P.M. 

** Please note that all votes that are taken during this meeting shall be done by Roll Call vote. ** 

Visitor Orientation to the Zoning Board of Adjustment Meeting 

Welcome to this evening's Zoning Board of Adjustment meeting.  

Copies of agendas and a sign-in sheet are available for visitors. 

 

Meeting Access 

In-Person      Remote Meeting Participation 

Town Hall (New ¼ mile from Old Town Hall) Video: barrington.nh.gov/zbmeeting 

Main Meeting Room   Call in via computer +1 603-664-0240, 514518321#    

4 Signature Drive Barrington, NH 03825    

Meeting Materials 

Additional details regarding each agenda item and all supporting documentation can be found online at 

https://www.barrington.nh.gov/zoning-board-adjustment. Please contact the Land Use department with any questions 

via phone at (603) 664-5798 or email at planning@barrington.nh.gov. Files on the applications and items, above, 

including the full text of any proposed ordinances, regulations, or other initiatives are available for inspection in the 

Land Use Department Office, Monday through Thursday from 8:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 

Special Accommodations 

The Town of Barrington requires 48 hours’ notice if the meeting must be modified for your participation or if 

special communication aides are needed.  Please submit requests to the Land Use Department office via phone at 

(603) 664-5798 or email at planning@barrington.nh.gov. 

https://www.barrington.nh.gov/zbmeeting
tel:+16036640240,,274311590# 
https://www.barrington.nh.gov/zoning-board-adjustment
mailto:planning@barrington.nh.gov

